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building to be erected within 100 days, at a cost of $1,058. The building was completed in
August, with some items added to the expense: a communion table, painting, a fence, and
grading, for a final price of $1,135.69. This first church was a square, one-story front with a
two-story ell.

The “Constitution of the Church of Christ in the Second Congregational Society”
was adopted December 29, 1840, and signed January 5, 1841. Article 5 was the covenant.

Covenant

“My friend and brother (or sisters and brethren.) You present yourself here,
wishing to profess your faith in Christ, and unite with this Christian Church, 1 ask
therefore,

Do you repent of your sins and determine to forsake them, and is it your heart’s
desire and fervent wish to become a faithful disciple of our Lord and Saviour?

And do you believe that Jesus is the Christ, the Son of God, who is able to save
to the uttermost all who come to God by him?

[If the person has not been baptized, this shall now be done.]

We then receive you gladly into our number, we welcome you to the communion
of Christian hearts, we solemnly promise and engage to Sympathize with you ,watch
over you and support you in the trials of life and the work of duty. And we engage to
unite with you in the diligent use of Christian ordinances and to yield obedience to all
truth which shall be made known to us as our duty; the Lord assisting us by his spirit
and grace. And may God our Father grant that this union formed on earth, may be
continued in Heaven, and fit us for the fellowship of the saints in light.”

On the first Sunday in December 1840, the Rev. George L. Moore of Concord,
Massachusetts, became the first minister. He was born in Concord May 4, 1812, graduated
from Harvard University in August 1834, and Theological School in July 1839. His starting
salary was $10 per Sunday service. A fund left by an individual in Boston provided $150
yearly “For the propagation of the Gospel to the North American Indians and others.” To
access this missionary fund, the church had to do outreach work. That consisted of Moore
reading his Sunday morning sermon to inmates of the county jail later in the day.

Henry Asbury knew Moore and describes his character in “Reminiscences of Quincy,
Illinois,” his book written in 1881:

“There was one other of our early ministers ... wish to say a word about him.

I refer to the Rev. George Moore, the first Unitarian minister settled here. Mr. Moore
came here about 1840, and was a close follower in his general ideas and religious
convictions of Dr. Channing. He was never married; was not a great preacher, or at
least not a noisy one; modest, kindly in his manners and disposition, but he literally
went about doing good. I believe he was the first of our preachers that habitually
visited the prisoners in jail, going there every week, and in some instances, every day.
A most Christian gentleman, whose account of the High Court of Record in Heaven no
doubt will bear inspection by the Great Master Himself. Those who knew him well did
not soon forget him, and many still remember him, though his remains have slept in
Woodland Cemetery for over thirty-five years.”






C ~> The Fourth Church Building & —>

The earliest recorded proposal to leave the 635 Maine Street church building appeared
in the annual trustees’ report for the year 1910:

“It has also been suggested by some that the church property be disposed of,
a smaller church built with part of the proceeds and a sufficient amount be invested to
secure a permanent income for the church.”

Church membership had grown smaller due to deaths and members moving
away from Quincy. The treasurer’s report showed that the amount received in 1910 was
$2,435, expenditures amounted to $2,499, leaving a deficit of $64. It appears that it was a
discouraging time.

The deficit grew to $1,000 in 1911, much of it due to insurance, a new sidewalk, and
repairs after September rain damage. The next year the church would be billed $400 for
street paving. At a March 13, 1912 meeting, the trustees proposed to sell the Maine Street
property for $350 per front foot. At the same meeting Trustee Otto Mohrenstecher read a
letter from the Rev. Charles F. Elliott resigning as minister. The congregation had many
decisions to make.

A month later, Mohrenstecher offered $29,000 {$679,424} {amount in 2013 dollars} for
the 635 Maine Street property. This amount was accepted by the trustees at a later meeting. The
sale was finalized July 1, 1912.

The following article appeared in the Quincy Daily Journal on August 30, 1913:

Famous Landmark is Being Razed

The old Unitarian church on Maine between Sixth and Seventh streets,
which has been a landmark for years, will soon be a thing of the past. The steady
growth of the city demands that churches be located in the residential district and
the old structure is rapidly disappearing before the axes and saws of the workimen.
In its place will rise a fine new office building and theatre.

The old church has served as house of worship to many of Quincy’s leading
Protestant citizens. But it has served its time The old timbers were beginning to
be affected with what is known as dry rot.

At the May 24, 1912, Board of Trustees meeting, three locations for a new church
were considered: southwest corner of 14™ and Hampshire, northwest corner of 16* and
Vermont including a dwelling, and a vacant lot on the northwest corner of 16™ and
Hampshire. The trustees considered the price of $3,200 for the 16™ and Hampshire lot and its
location better than the others; a motion to purchase passed 10 to 3. The minutes stated:

“Judge McCarl moved that the trustees go ahead and build a church on the lot
just purchased for sum not to exceed $15,000. ... Mr. Mohrenstecher spoke in favor
of retaining part of the fund to bear income and thus increase the amount necessary to
meet the usual annual expenses. Dr. E. B. Montgomery proposed that the trustees go
ahead and secure plans for a church regardless of price to present at a future meeting.

“Those present Judge McCarl, Messrs Mohrenstecher, Bradford, Woodruft,
Kespohl, Woods, Potter, Montgomery, Bert. Mrs. Janes, McCarl, Berrian, Woodruff,
Miss Beckersbaugh.”



By October 1912, the congregation was considering candidates for the next minister
and plans for the new church building. A 1903 publication by the American Unitarian
Association (AUA), titled “Plans for Churches,” guided members to look at the plans of
churches in Iowa City, lowa; Madison, Wisconsin; Urbana, Illinois, and Kansas City,
Missouri. Trustees E. F. Bradford and Samuel Eldred visited the Kansas City church and in
December recommended a church building similar to it. The architect was Walter C. Root,
a Kansas City Unitarian who designed the church there. The Quincy church paid $50 to his
architectural firm of Root & Siemans for building plans that were accepted by the Board of
Trustees with the addition of social and Sunday School rooms beneath the main auditorium.
This was announced in the Quincy Daily Whig December 7, 1912.

The chair of the building committee was W.H. Woodruff, with Dr. E. B.
Montgomery assisting. Harvey Chatten was the architectural contractor to supervise the
construction. Contracts were let for the structure in April 1913. Minutes of the June 18
board meeting demonstrate that all was not planned in detail.

“Mr. Mohrenstecher read a report of the expenditures up to the present time,
towards the building of the new church, showing that the amount had exceeded by
several hundred dollars the estimate of the architect.

“Mr. Mohrenstecher also stated that the architects estimate of the cost of the
completed building did not include pews, the moving and setting up of the organ, or
any decoration of the walls other than a tinting of the plastering.

“All this would add considerably to the expenses as first estimated, and still
more if the society wished a more handsomely decorated interior than provided for
in the plans. The trustees desired to know the wishes of the society in the matter of
interior decoration, and asked permission to solve the financial difficulty by drawing
upon the $10,000 fund set aside at an earlier meeting for the purpose of building a
parsonage.”

On August 15, 1913 a meeting of the society, with 14 members present, resolved:
“That a sum not to exceed $5,000 be set aside from the amount previously reserved by this
society for the purpose of moving, repairing and installing the organ, and for decorating,
furnishing and finishing the new church.”

With the sale of the Maine Street building and its furnishings, amounting to $31,250,
the trustees were able to build and furnish the new building, buy a parsonage at 1454
Vermont for $6,000 {$140,570} with a remaining balance of $2,000. Amazingly, the new
building was constructed in about eight months at a cost close to $21,000 {$480,465}.



In a church report:

New Church Building — Items of Cost

Buerkin & Kaempen Contract and extras $13374.00
O’Neil Plumbing Co. Plumbing & Heating 1500.00
Harvey Chatten 5% on Contract 725.00
Herman Haubrock, sodding 67.00
American Seating Co. Pews 506.00
A'F. Trapp organ storage 34.50
Kilgen & Sons, moving & rebuilding organ 830.00
Mr. Berghofer, tin work, dummy organ pipes 11.75
Spierling & Linden, decorators 19.00
Church plans and specifications 50.00
Travel expense of Trustees to Kansas City, Mo. 26.70
E.R. Chatten, lot survey 10.00
Quincy Gas & Electric Co. 185.00
Quincy Electric Co. electric fixtures 204.00
Quincy Stone Construction Co. walks & steps 186.42
Tenk Hardware Co., hardware, doors & windows 95.00
Michaelman, covering for window areas 48.00
Church lot 3000.00

The design of the 16™ and Hampshire building is described as Tudor Revival and
Craftsman, similar to the country parish churches of late medieval England. Each individual
stone block looks irregular, but closer inspection reveals careful cutting and fitting to create
an effect of broken courses rather than a random arrangement. The superb masonry design
is especially evident in the cut stones above the doors and windows. The two second-
story sections — the tower room and the pastor’s study and office — are stucco with half-
timbering. All woodwork on the main floor is oak except the butternut organ case. The ,
general design of the paneling and furniture in the chancel is a modified Gothic. Mrs. Isabel
Lynds, a member of our Ladies Industrial Alliance, furnished the new pulpit and chairs in
memory of her husband Daniel and son Edward.

The Quincy Daily Journal newspaper of December 6, 1913 praised the new church
building for its artistic design and practicality: “Situated on one of the prettiest corners in Quincy,
in a neighborhood wherein it is a jewel in a proper setting, the new church erected by the Unitarian
congregation is not only a building worthy of being a temple of God, but is furthermore a thing of
beauty and an adornment to the city.

“The building is of a size fitted to the needs of the congregation and will be all sufficient for
many years to come. It is constructed of stone and there are drop gables of wood, the whole making
a most artistic and pleasing appearance, with every indication of great durability, and the architecture
being along old English lines and most elegant in its simplicity.

“Inside the beautiful edifice the same scheme of elegant simplicity is carried out and the main
auditorium of this sanctuary is one of the most beautiful of any house of worship in the city. Opening
from the vestibule the auditorium extends in graceful lines to the organ loft and pulpit, is finished in
walnut and the ceiling is of the artistic arched beam effect.

“On the east side of the auditorium is the parlor, separated from the auditorium by folding
doors with glass. It has a beautiful fireplace of tapestry brick and rough stone which lends much
charm to it for informal church functions. Behind the parlor is the library and this will contain the
church collection of books, and be used for various purposes.






On January 22, 1914, one of the church women’s groups, the King’s Daughters, held
an all-day meeting and decided to give a three-course dinner the next Thursday. The Quincy
Daily Journal reported on January 30 and the Quincy Whig on February 1:

King’s Daughters Give Pretty Supper at Unitarian Church

One hundred and sixty people sat down to the long snowy tables in the
dining room of the new Unitarian church last night when the King’s Daughters, an
organization of young ladies of the church, gave a supper. The tables were very pretty
in their decorations of Japanese apple blossoms, being sold to those who wished to
buy them after the supper. The menu included hot veal loaf, gravy, brown mashed
potatoes, peas, home-made hot rolls, peach salad, cheese delights, chocolate ice cream
and little home made white cakes iced in white and chocolate. After dinner there was
a half hour of delightful organ music by William Spencer Johnson. The members of
the Unitarian church are deriving no end of pleasure from their pretty new home of
worship and the church is expected to grow in popularity.

On Thursday evening, February 5, 1914, the new church building was dedicated and
the Rev. Lyman Greenman was installed. Following is the program, with some speeches

inserted:
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convictions. Among Unitarians, differences of belief cause no bitterness. But just because
we are free to handle the facts of life, nearly all of us reach about the same conclusions.
There 1s a unity in diversity rather than a formal uniformity of opinion.

“The sixteen ministers who have held the pulpit during the Society’s existence have
greatly differed in religious and philosophical thought. Some have been conservatives, and
some have been radicals. Some have been optimists, and some have been pessimists. Some
have been scarcely more than Socinians, and some have been extreme rationalists. We have
had those who went about doing good in the name of the Master, and we have had closet
students. We have had ‘God intoxicated men’ and we have had scientific materialists. We
have had seers, poets and hymn-writers. We have had pulpit orators and learned scholars.
We have welcomed men of every opinion, without committing any one to their opinions. We
have given each a respectful hearing, mindful that truth is many sided, but we have always
reserved the right of judgment, and have yielded obedience to the truth as we saw the truth.

“So far along, we have never had a Socialist in the pulpit. Unitarianism has been
called the ‘Religion of Individualism.’ It has also been called the ‘Religion of Humanity.’
Unitarians have ever been interested in social questions and of work in social service. We are
all Socialists if Socialism has anything to do with regard for one’s fellow being, with equality
of opportunity and even-handed justice. But if Socialism means the economic reconstruction
of the social order, there are but few of us who are Socialists. We are Evolutionists, most of us,
and believe in the development of institutions, --institutions that have built up slowly through
the ages.

“Under the inspiration and in the spirit of this traditional hospitality, tolerance and
open-mindedness, we welcome you, Mr. Greenman, and your Message. We welcome you to
the work and duties of this Society. We welcome you to our homes and to our hearts.

“And now, sir, as its representative, and by virtue of the powers vested in me, I install
you the Minister of this Society and extend to you the right hand of fellowship.”

Regponsge by Minister

Rev. Greenman responded with an address, saying he feels welcome here and
encouraging the members to work together for the advancement of our church. He stated
that our community needs “constructive teaching, and positive and constructive religion. ...
(people) with large thoughts, steady hands and strong opinions. We shall come together in
the freedom of Truth; ..and are now looking into an untried and unknown future which holds
new opportunities of service.”

Belivery of the Keps of the Fourth Meeting-HBouse
William H. Woodruff, Chairman of the Building Committee,
presented the keys.

Acceptance of the Keps
Otto A. Mohrenstecher, Chairman of the Board of Trustees

“Mr. Woodruff, as chairman of the Board of Trustees, I wish to commend you as
Head of the building committee and your able colleague, Dr. Montgomery, for your efficient



interest and untiring energy displayed during the erection of the modest edifice we call our

Church home.

“Little do we realize as we enjoy it with quiet satisfaction, the travail and vexation of
spirit endured by the founders, who dared to create this outpost of liberalism three quarters of
a century ago, when Unitarianism as an organized Social force was yet young, and before it
had radiated its benign influence throughout the length and breadth of this great land.

“A long line of devoted leaders have kept the torch aflame, and they have left us
a rich endowment of fortitude, perseverance and spirituality, and who dare say that this
community has not been benefited by the presence through all these years by the presence of

this power for good.”

Servire of Redication

MINISTER AND PEOPLE
) give thanks unto the Lord, call upon His name.

O Y.ord, our God, unto Thee be praise aud thanksgiving forever
and ever.,

From the rising of the sun even unto the going down of the same let
His name be praised among all the people.

To the only Holy, the First and the Tast, be thanksgiving and
praise; from.all kindreds and tongues on earth. Awmw,

May this house be unto us no other than the howse of God. Here let
us worship Hini who is spirit, in spirit and in truth.

Here let us with heart and voice and hands serve the Lord in
gladupess,

Beloved, let us love one aunother, for love is of God; aund evervonethat
Toveth is born of God, and kanoweth God.

And thou shalt love the Lord thy God with all thy heart, and
with all thy soul, and with all thy wind, and with all thy
strength, ‘I'how shalt tove thy neighbor as thyself.

Almighty God, Father of ali, we now dedicate this house to Thee and
to Thy service. Thou alone art mighty. In Thee do we live and move
and have our heing.

oo it

We dedicate this house to that freedom of mind and spirit which
in Jesus enabled him to fulfil thelaw and prophets and to become
the way, the truth, and the life of the world.

Tu that way, that truth and that life may we become worthy disciples
of our Great Teacher. Aud in that common Fatherhood, which he
made known to the world, may we fnd perfect peace.

We dedicate this house to the instrietion of the children whom
Thou has committed to our charge. (Give us grace to lead them
into worthy citizenship through Thy faith and love.

We dedicate this house to Christian Fellowship of childhood and age,

youth and machood. May it promote the sweet whenities of tife and |

bring joy aud gladness.

We dedicate this house to the promotion of Justice, Civic Right-
eousness and the Canse of the People. May we feel the fresh
wants of the titne and serve our neighbor with willing and glad
hearts.

In this house may the beatitudes of the Christion life and our great

hopes of life and destiny find deeper meanings.

Almighty God, we hold in memory the true and noblesouls that
have lived with us and for us, into whose labors we have entered.
From their sacrifices and trivmphs may we rise as their worthy
followers, and may the ceaseless devotion of generations of noble
men and svomen justify every metnorial which, in thne to come,
shall add grace and glory to this visible temple.

Praper

Rev. Walter F. Greenman

Solo
Oratorio — Mary Magdalen.

Hymmn of Bedication

Mrs. Roman G. Arnold
J. Massenet

Except thou, Lord, our work sustain

Frederick L. Hosmer,
(Quincy) Minister 1872-1877
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The Memorial Windows Fund Report:

Paid to:
W. H. Helmerich & Co. South window ...........ccecvevvveeinenereecne. $250.00
W. H. Helmerich & Co. Memorial window..........ccccceceeiniiieeninnnnne 400.00
W. H. Helmerich & Co. Walton Window .........ccccceverenrenincnnencnnnen 225.00
W. H. Helmerich & Co. Berrian window...........occooccevceneneneencenncns 225.00
Mr. Ward for designing Walton & Berrian windows ..........ccoccoceeeeneee 0.00
Express charges on designs .........cccceieirivinnenieeiee e 1.00
Buerkin & Kaempen installing Memorial window...........c.ccccevveeee. 103.00
Buerkin & Kaempen installing three other windows..........c..co.c...... 93.00
Buerkin & Kaempen installing repairing door ........cccoveeveeevvinincnns 4.40
Jost & Kiefer Printing, programs Walton day........c.ccccecvineinnnneenne. 5.75
Jost & Kiefer Printing,Berrian day .......coooveiveeniiicniieecneenene 3.75
Quincy Photo Eng. Co. cut of Berrian window .......ccccoeccrivennnnen. 3.00
Quincy Photo Eng. Co. cut of Walton Window.........cccceevverecrerceennens 2.20
Total Paid ....c.ooovvvviniiieis e $1,366.15
Donations received for fund .......c.cccevvvveviveeireeeeeeeeeee e 1,374.25
Paid UL o 1.366.15
Balance on hand .........coocoiieiiiiiniceec e 8.10

C T~ Meetings in the New Building (&Z—"D

The first Women’s Alliance annual meeting in the new church was held May 6, 1914,
in the church parlor. From the minutes of the meeting:

“Meetings have been held monthly, except during the summer vacation. The
following committees carry on the work of the Alliance: Programme, Philanthropy,
House, Hospitality, Post Office Mission, and Cheerful Letter. Thus far during the
year the various committees have worked effectively. Unitarian literature has been
sent north, south, east and west. The “shut-ins” have been cheered by good and
useful literature. Woodland Home has been much benefited through the philanthropic
committee. The Church has been well looked after through the House Committee.

... (The Alliance) is in a flourishing condition both financially and socially ... with
their membership of Forty-five.”

At the congregation’s annual meeting of Jan. 6, 1915, the number of trustees was
increased from three to five, in addition to the treasurer and secretary. The year-end report
reflects a loss of nine in the church membership number. Three people signed the membership
book, and there was a loss of 12 members; two moved from Quincy and ten members died.
“But few years have we had such a large death loss as in 1915.”

The new church building was popular for community ceremonies and performances.
For example, in April 1915 the church held the 21% annual graduation of the Blessing
Hospital School for Nurses. The detailed newspaper article tells us, “The commencement
address was delivered by [our] Rev. Greenman. The theme of his talk was: ‘Opportunity of
the Nurse in the Reconstruction of Society,” and his remarks were forcible and inspiring.”

In June 1916 members participated in a pilgrimage to the three former church sites
with an address given at each: north side of Maine between Third and Fourth, south side of
Jersey between Sixth and Seventh, and 635 Maine Street. Charles Seger, a great-grandson of
Robert S. Benneson, planted ivy at the front of the new church. A social gathering, supper,
music, and an evening service followed.
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A long, detailed article in the Quincy Daily Journal of June 2, 1919, describes the
church’s 80" anniversary. “The memorable occasion was celebrated with a service so
simple in its quiet dignity and absence of ostentation that it went straight to the hearts of the
congregation gathered together to pay tribute to the courage and fearlessness of those who
organized the first liberal church and to the men and women who have been true to its ideals
ever since. ... Considered to be the four great milestones along the way were:
the address of Dr. Channing, the sermon given by Ralph Waldo Emerson, the higher criticism
of the Bible, and the theory of evolution.”

C T~ A New Minister and a New Name (2—"D

The Rev. Earl Cook arrived in September 1919. His early education was in
commerce and finance. He was employed in the accounting department of the Standard Oil
Company. His next position was a member of the editorial staff of the Boston Journal for two
years. Then he studied at the University of Chicago and Meadville Theological School in
preparation for the Unitarian ministry. Quincy was his first pastorate.

“At the Annual Meeting of January 7, 1920
The name of the Society was changed by unanimous vote, from Second
Congregational Society to Unitarian Church.”

The treasurer’s annual report for the year 1920:

Cash on hand, last annual report ..................c.coil $13.78
Total receipts for the year ..., 3.158.46 {$35,794}
Total to account for ...........ooiiviiiiiiii s 3,172.24
Total Expenditures forthe year ........................... 3.150.46
Cash balance on hand at close of year ................... $21.78

The Rev. Henry S. Cope arrived in 1923. He was a noted writer
on religious education, religious editor of the Chicago Tribune, and
editor of the magazine “Religious Education” from its inception in 1906.
He spoke to capacity audiences in our church, and afternoons at other
churches. He passed away in August 1923.The Rev. Celian Ufford was
the minister from September 1923 to 1926. Then The Rev. C. Russell
Carlin came from Alton, [1linois, serving until the spring of 1928.

] ; The Rev. Daniel Sands arrived in

Rev. Celian Ufford  September 1928. He was an advanced liberal,
interested in social work. He organized a “social center” in a poor
factory neighborhood and found a home in that area of the city, enjoying
the children’s group there. He was secretary of the Unitarian Illinois
Conference and was invited to be one of the speakers at the Conference
in Philadelphia held in October 1931.

Here is a letter of urgency to members. There was apprehension 1
that Sands might leave Quincy, choosing a position with a Massachusetts ~ Rev. Daniel Sands
church:
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In June 1970 polished plate glass was put on the east and south leaded glass windows
for protection. Church members painted the basement walls sunflower yellow, the ceiling
white, and the beams and pipes red and Washington blue.

Parson Hoagland, as he referred to himself, completed his interim ministry May 31,
1970. He passed away May 9, 1993, in Madison, Wisconsin at the age of 87.

Herman E. Dege passed away on February 25, 1970, at the age of 85. He escaped
Germany and the German Army the summer before WWI began, bringing his wife and
three-year-old daughter Bertha to America. They began membership in the church in 1931.
As Sunday School superintendent, he led the Junior Church every week. He organized and
directed plays for the children’s participation. Mr. Dege, owner of The Artisan Furniture
Shop, was a well known craftsman. He designed and made the chancel candelabra table and
small matching table that served as a stand for Mrs. Johnson’s violin. These were donated at
the 1939 centennial of the church. He also served as board trustee and on the Building and
Grounds committee.

C > Women’s Organizations "D

The Ladies Industrial Society formed October 30, 1867. Their motto:
“To work together in a glorious cause — to be known by our works as well as our faith.”
They met on Wednesdays at 2:00 and usually sewed, knitted or crocheted aprons, tea towels,
mittens, etc. for the Unitarian table at the Society Fair. The proceeds were donated to the
Woodland Home (Quincy’s orphanage). At 3:00 the attendance was taken for the business
meeting and after that, there was time for more sewing work on the projects, usually
adjourning at 5:00. They also raised money cooking and serving dinners, and holding dances
in places like the Opera House. They made annual donations to the church that were vital to
the church finances. This is an example of a thank you note from the Board of Trustees:

Sept. 22, 1871
Mrs. Fred Potter
Secretary Ladies Industrial

By request of the Trustees, I wish to thank you in behalf of the society for your
generous donation of seventy-five dollars, Sept. 14" toward reducing the Church debt.
It comes at an opportune time, and will go far towards accomplishing the desired result.
Again thanking you, I remain yours, F.E. Doyen
{$75;in 2013: $1,420}

These are excerpts from meeting minutes:

March 2, 1910

The Ladies Industrial had an all-day session to make ... a number of dresses and undergarments

for the orphans of Woodland Home. In the afternoon, the president called the meeting to order, the
minutes read and approved, and the treasurer read the report of the supper served in the church parlors
on Friday evening, Feb. 22, the report showing a satisfactory return for the time and labor expended.
The net receipts were $28.66. {$695.00}.

Dec. 17. 1913

The Industrial Society held its first meeting in the new church and eighteen members were present.
After various attempts to escape the noise and confusion of the plumbers, a business meeting was
called. ... A card was read from Miss Beckenbaugh asking the society to join in an effort to keep the
price of eggs down to thirty-two cents per dozen, as other cities were asking this price.
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A World Citizenship Declaration resolution was submitted on October 12 to the
church board, and approved. Itread: “The common interests of (people) can only be met
through world cooperation. We pledge our efforts as world citizens to the establishment of
permanent peace, based on just world law and to the use of world resources in the service
of man and not for his destruction.” Dr. Ronald Glossop of Southern Illinois University-
Edwardsville was the speaker for the ceremony on Friday, November 17. The general public
was invited to attend. Forty-five church members signed the World Citizenship Declaration.
The committee included Larry Byrnes, Bertha Danhaus, Nona Miller, Frieda Marshall, Doris
and Gentry Koch, and Sherman Bond.

The Social Action Committee researched pre-planned funerals and memorial services.
Erna Fast, director of the Quincy YWCA , spoke to an Adult Forum meeting, explaining the
services offered in Oakland, California. The Funeral and Memorial Society of Quincy was
formed and met regularly in the church.

A Gay Nineties Gala was a fun-filled evening on April 6, 1973, looking back at
the 1890s, which none of us remembered, of course. Members and friends performed the
four-act melodrama, “Only An Orphan Girl,” directed by one of our members, Jann Schaub,
assistant professor of drama at Culver-Stockton College. John Sperry built the buzz saw
that Andrea White was strapped to. Tickets were $1, with Frances Morrison in place to
fend off scalpers. Enid Ireland played the piano for the 11 olios and the drama. Root beer,
homemade pretzels and popcorn balls were served. The entertainment ended with a square-
dancing demonstration for the audience of 200. The Women’s Alliance was the sponsoring
organization for this extravaganza.

C T~ The First Annual Plant Sale (22—

Cal Knapp’s great idea that we are still enjoying is our annual plant sale. The first
sale took place on May 12, 1973, with a variety of plants donated by members. A spring
luncheon and a slide show of exquisite flowers and garden scenes was narrated by Reverend
Knapp. The profit was $167. Little did we realize what the future held for this event.

The Wayside Pulpit was built by Fred Stephan and installed in 1973, lighted from
6:30 to 9:30 p.m. Frequently, we hear a new member say this large sign was the first thing

noticed at our church and drew the person to us.

The committee chairs beginning in May 1973 were:

Education: Peter Stoecklin Social Action: Elizabeth Stebbins
Fellowship: Pauline Bond Music: Frances Morrison

Cultural Affairs: Jann Schaub Special Projects: Frieda Marshall
Membership: Robert Campbell Public Relations: Enid Ireland
Building & Grounds: Gentry Koch Flowers and Decorations: Dienna Drew

Interest in Family Planning for the Quincy area began as a Unitarian Church project.
The guest speaker for the December 1971 Women’s Alliance was Erna Fast of the YWCA.
She encouraged the establishment of Planned Parenhood. The next month, the Alliance
speaker was Mrs. Scotty McLemore, area director of Planned Parenthood in Southeast
Iowa. She explained what the church could do to help establish Family Planning in Quincy.
Organizational meetings were held and Dr. DuPuy of Quincy, on behalf of several doctors,
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C T~ The 1913 Church Building Anniversary (=—"DO

The 70™ anniversary of our church building, dedicated on February 5, 1914, was
celebrated on February 5, 1984. The guest speaker was the Rev. Earl Holt, minister at First
Unitarian Church of St. Louis. Dr. Brigham led the meditation, Carol Fisher Mathieson, our
organist, selected the music, and several members took part in the service.

The Easter 1985 service sermon was “Easter, Exodus, and Spring Training” by Dr.
Haugan. Members and friends of the Burlington Fellowship came for the service. Special
music was provided by Dr. Robert Jones, clarinet; Susan Drew, violin; and James Donovan,
organ.

Board President Nancy Winters conducted the May 1985 annual meeting. Dr. Haugan
gave his report, quoting Tom Peters’ book, Excellence: “The factors of excellence are 1.
Leadership, 2. Innovation, 3. Enthusiasm, 4. Paying attention to people. ... keep these in
mind as we look ahead to next year.” He reported that in addition to being president of the
Central Illinois UU Council and serving on the Central Midwest District Board, he had been
elected president of the Prairie Star UU Ministers’ Chapter (Burlington’s District). Jim Drew
resigned as treasurer, having held the office for 10 years.

Frieda Marshall and the Membership Committee made name tags for members,
enabling new members and guests to know us more easily. The Worship Committee,
planning alternate Sunday services, was chaired by Nike Mendenhall. Members of the
Religious Education Committee were Dienna Drew, Georgia House, Dan Kelly, Nancy
Winters and David Quarles. Michael Drew provided child care, as his sister Susan had done
during her high school years.

In the spring of 1986 a congregational survey listed familiar priorities:

Congregational growth

Having a full-time minister

Being a social force in the community
Strong Religious Education program

e

Other concerns were financial stability, greater membership participation, more music,
building improvements, intellectual and spiritual development.

In a board meeting, Sherman Bond moved that a ministerial relations committee
be formed to improve the relationship and communications between the congregation and
the minister. The committee used the UU Ministers’ Association guidebook. Members were
Brad Bohlen, Mary Belle Coffman, John Nielsen, and the board president, Robert Mathieson.
A revision of the Constitution was discussed, one article at each Board meeting. In October
1986, Bob Mathieson resigned as board president because of illness, but continued as a
trustee. Dienna Drew was attending a Knox College reunion that weekend, missing that
board meeting, and was elected board president. (Lesson: It is not good to be absent from a
board meeting.)

Dr. Haugan tendered his resignation in January 1987, after having conducted the
shared ministry with Quincy and Burlington for four and a half years. He wrote: “The past
years have been rewarding, satisfying, and challenging for me. I have been asked to help



























gatherings were initiated by Sharon Buzzard and Steve Wiegenstein in their home on the first
Friday of October, 1999.

C > OWLClasses (=D

Michael and Jen Drew attended a training session in Chicago in the fall of 1999 for
the “Our Whole Lives (OWL) Sexuality Education Project.” This program was designed by
the UUA and the United Church of Christ. The primary focus emphasizes self-worth, sexual
health, responsibility, justice, and inclusivity. Michael and Jen taught this 27-session course
every Sunday morning from October 1999 through April 2000 for six students, grades 7-9.
The parents and children indicated the program was beneficial.

A seminar “Intro to Unitarianism” was presented in the spring of 2001 for members
and interested visitors. The Rev. John Brigham described the history of Unitarianism in
Europe and in our country, Frieda Marshall reviewed the history of the local church, and
Ellen Taylor’s topic was “How we are organized.” Close to twenty members participated in
the three sessions.

Ellen Taylor, board president, conducted the annual congregational meeting on May
20, 2001. The Long-range Planning Committee presented preliminary architectural plans
for a possible addition to the church building. Carol Mathieson was named Member of the
Year for her services as devoted organist for almost 30 years. It was announced that Dr.
Manning was promoted from associate professor to full professor of philosophy and theology
at Quincy University.

A much respected member, V. Sherman Bond, died in Good Samaritan Home on
June 18, 2001, at the age of 89. He and his wife Pauline joined the church in 1942. Sherman
served several terms on the Board of Trustees, was president in 1974 and treasurer in 1986.
A bio-chemist, he was employed by Calcium Carbonate Company.

The church Web site has an exhibit of 20 postage stamps bearing images of prominent
Unitarians and Universalists with biographies. This was the original work of the Junior
Stamp Club of the First Universalist Church of Rochester, New York, assisted by Anna
Louise Brigham.

The Women’s Alliance produced a cookbook, “In Good Taste,” the name Mary
Belle Coffman suggested during the search for a title. Many church members and friends
contributed recipes for this collection of treasures. For many years at carry-in dinners we
had asked for recipes of the delicious dishes, inspiring the cookbook.

C T~ In the Wake of September 11, 2001 C2—"D

Our board president, Ellen Taylor, Dr. Manning, and William Sinkford, the UUA
president, responded compassionately with messages after the terrorist attack on the World
Trade Center in New York City. Their messages in our newsletter and in the UU World had
a calming effect and encouraged thoughtful recognition of the basic goodness of people
with alternate religious beliefs. The board reached out to the local Muslim community
with support and an offer of use of our church building for their services. Members of the
congregation submitted letters to the editor of The Quincy Herald-Whig. Those printed were
from Dr. Manning, Dr. James Hayashi, Dr. David Wexler and Georgia House.
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Activities in December 2005 included preparation of gift baskets for the home-
bound. This annual project was inspired and organized by Kim Tonozzi. The Hayashi family
hosted a gathering in their home following the Christmas Eve service. The Quincy Herald-
Whig listed our church among the top ten Quincy church Web sites. The comment was
“Orderly and efficient. Check out which famous people were Unitarians or Universalists.”
Compliments were extended to the Webmaster, Michael Flanagan.

As a winner of the Fulbright Scholarship, Dr. Manning taught philosophy classes
in Romania, including a course about the Holocaust. He and board members arranged for
Sunday services and pastoral duties to be performed by others during the year of 2006. He
generously offered his second-semester salary be put toward the building fund.

C ~> Building the Church Addition /D>

Church members began to realize, in the 1970s, that we needed more room for church
activities, and our sanctuary and restrooms should be handicapped accessible. Many plans
were considered for more than two decades, including an elevator, a chair lift on the stairway,
remodeling the restrooms, and adding a restroom on the main church floor.

Steve Ward presented an update at the semi-annual meeting, Jan. 2001, on progress in
making our building accessible to everyone. The results of a survey conducted the previous
May and June indicated that most members favored an addition to be constructed. The
Building and Grounds Annual report, May 2001 informed us that the church property was
surveyed by the engineering firm of Klingner and Associates for $1058.81. The Long Range
Planning Committee pointed the necessity of making our building accessible to all; ““...some
of our members are unable to attend services due to the physical limitations of our facility.”
The Board of Trustees, the Long Range Planning and Building and Grounds committees met
in the fall of 2001, with a representative of Zion Church Builders. Don Chapman examined
preliminary plans for an addition to our church building. At the semi-annual congregational
meeting January 20, 2002, an overwhelming majority voted for building the addition.

The Ad Hoc Long Range Planning Committee for the building addition reported
regularly. By March 2003, Steve Ward had received a proposal from an architect who
previously lived in the house to the north of the church property. Having been a church
neighbor for some years, architect Kim Mulch indicated a special interest and eagerness to
work on this project. The goals of building the addition were to provide a large, additional
meeting space, a modern kitchen, and, most important, handicapped accessibility to our

building.

A fund-raising campaign, “Affirmation in Action” was launched in 2006 to support
the building of an addition. The plan would make our building handicapped-accessible
and compatible architecturally with the present historic structure. The guiding committee
included Bill Holden, Sherryl Lang, Ben Morrison, Dave Ripper, and Ellen Taylor. Drawings
were endorsed by the Quincy Plan Commission for “an addition onto the back of the
Unitarian Church ... a 2,200 square foot addition.” Fred Stephan, working with Kim Mulch
of Klingner & Associates, would monitor construction.

A special board meeting was called for February 11, 2007, to review information
regarding a contract with Zion Church Builders. Jim Hinza, president of Zion, answered



























APPENDIX 1

MINISTERS OF THE QUINCY UNITARIAN CHURCH

George Moore................. 1840-1847
Mordecai Delange............ 1848-1850
William H. Fuller............. 1850-1854
Liberty Billings............... 1854-1861

Martin W. Willis.............. 1862-1865

S.S. Hunting.................. 1865-1871

Wm. Thome................... 1871-1871

Frederick L. Hosmer......... 1872-1877
James Vila Blake.............. 1877-1883
Francis S. Thatcher............ 1884-1884
John Tunnis ................... 1884-1887
Charles F. Bradley............ 1887-1896
Thomas J. Horner............. 1897-1899
Samuel L. Elberfeld........... 1900-1902
Charles W. Pearson............ 1903-1905
Charles F. Elliott................1906-1912
Richard F. Tischer.............1913-1913

1479 Hampshire church

Lyman M. Greenman..........1913-1918
Earl Cook........ccoviiniiinie 1919-1923
Henry S. Cope......ccenee. 1923-1923
Celian Ufford................... 1923-1926
C. Russell Carlin............... 1926-1928
Daniel Sands................ ....1928-1933
Ward Burgess Jenks........... 1934-1936
Robert Murray Pratt........... 1936-1947
Benjamin Rex Aman.......... 1947-1952
Thomas Maloney.............. 1953-1956
John Morris...........cooeeeee 1956-1960
George P. Crist, Jr............. 1960-1968
Lester Mondale................ 1968-1969
Robert Hoagland............... 1969-1970
Calvin Knapp................... 1971-1976
John W. Brigham.............. 1976-1982
Eric A. Haugan................ 1982-1987

Lynn Smith-Roberts.......... 1989-1995

Robert Manning................ 1996-2011
Scott Aaseng.................... 2011-

Founders of the Quincy Church, 1839-40

Ackers, Elizabeth

Babcock, John H.
Bartlett, Rosyln N.
Bartlett, S.M.

Benneson, Electa Anne

Benneson, Robert S.
Bryan, Almyra

Chapman, Elizabeth
Collier, Elizabeth M.

English, Rebecca
Evans, Betsy

Evans, Harriet
Everett, Catherine D.
Everett, Elizabeth
Everett, Samuel W.

Gage, Marie
Gage, Wm. H.
Gilman, Annette
Gilman, Chas.

Haven, Jas. B.
McFadon, Anna C.
Munroe, Geo.
Munroe, Persis E.
Munroe, Rebecca
Munroe, Wm.

Stratton,. Elisha

Young, Mary



APPENDIX II

ROLL ¢« OF - HONOR

NAME SERVICE
Elizabeth Bert Navy
Loraine Cook Army
Ralph Keller Navy
Frank Dick Army
Roy Keller Army
Louis Eberhardt Army
Richard B. McCarl Army
Harry Grotenbacher Army
Lester Meyer Army
Emil Halbach Army
Albert Merkel Army
Milton Lubker Army
Burton Montgomery Navy
Allan Merkel Army
Edmund Montgomery Navy
Albert Smyth Army
Hosmer Montgomery Army
Emmet Spencer Army
Robert Montgomery Army
Harry D. Blasland Army
Albert Spohrs Army
Grace Westerman Army — Red Cross
Paul Westerman Army
Walter Westerman Army
John G. Wheelock Army
Channing Powers Navy
Donald McCarl Navy
Robert E. Starkey Army
Edward W. Siemens Navy
Eleanor Montgomery Army

THE*WAR*FOR*WORLD*FREEDOM



APPENDIX III

MEMBERS OF 1913
WHO BUILT OUR PRESENT CHURCH

Baker, Mrs. Calot E. .......ooooviiiiieeeiieeieeeee et 628 Spring St.
Brown, Robert & Josiah ....c....ccoooiiviiriiiiiiiee e 628 Spring St.
Bartlett, Charles L. (AtLY)..oc.ovooeeeeeieirieeeiieeiereeceeereree e 302% 6™ Ave. N.
Basse, MIS. AUGUST.....ceieiiiiiiieiciieiiee ettt e see s 1255 Maine St.
Basse, Henry (518 Maine).......ccooveereeiiiiiiiiieeieeienee e eve e 1255 Maine St.
Bernard, Mrs. Clara Auman (mother of Mrs. Bernard).........cc.ccceeeirnnnnne. 515 N. 31 St.
Berrian, MIs. B. F ..o 725 N. 12% St.
Bert, JORN L ..o 1457 Hampshire
(Grandchildren Archibald, Mary, Elizabeth)

Bert, Daniel C ..o 1459 Hampshire
Bradford, Mr. & Mrs. EAWIN F...ooovviiiiiiieeeeeeeee et 1451 Vermont
Bradford, LOUISE ......ccceerieiiiiiiieieeree ettt 1451 Vermont
Brooker, Mr. & Mrs. Orlando W ..o, 1207 Broadway
Carter, Mrs. DOUglas........ccoouiiriiiiiiieiiciee e 1869 Kentucky
Catlin, MisS E. H. ..oooiiiiiiiieeee ettt 1643Y,2 Vermont
Christie, DI. & MIS. R.J. oot 234 South 16™
Cook, Mr. & Mr1s. C. E. covviiiiiieee e 2600 Maine St. & Florida
Demaree, Mr. & Mrs. Charles D. ......coccooooiiiiiiiiiiiicci e 819% Vermont
Dick, Frank ...........coooiiiiiiiiii ettt 1254 Park Place
Dickson, Mr. & MIS. JAMES . ...oovovuiviiiiiieeecirieeee et 211 Chestnut St.
DUuncan, M. & MIS......ooiiiiiiiiiiieieete ettt ettt Ellington
Ebert, Mr. & Mrs. Charles E.........ooooviiiiiieceee et in Texas
Ebert, MisS Kate M. ..oiiiiiiioiiioee et et 329% So. 8"
Eldred, Mr. & Mrs. Samuel W........ocoooiiiiniiiineeeceeeceeeee 1454 Hampshire
Eldred, FIancis .......cccoceoiiiiiiiniieieeeetcetee e 1454 Hampshire
Eldred, Charles ........cccooiiiiiiieee e 1454 Hampshire
Elson, Mr. & Mrs. J. H., two children ..........c.ccooeevveeveiiieceeeeeeee e, 734 N. 5™ St.
Erte]l, MIS. GEOTZE ..couveeiiiiiiiieiieitetee ettt 1261 Park Place
Heitland family .......ooooveieiiiiiii et 212 Chestnut
Halbach, MIS. F. W. e East Ave. Lawndale
Halbach, MiSS FIOIE€NSE ...ooviviiiiieiiieieieeeccreeee et East Ave. Lawndale
Halbach, Mr. Emil  ..cccooiiiie e East Ave. Lawndale
Hillman, ML & MIS. E. B 230 So. 16™ St.
Hillman, MiSs MAIZaret ..........cocoveveeieieierieieieee e eeere e ese e 230 So. 16" St.
Janes, Mr. & Mrs. GEO. M. oot 216 Jersey St.
Janes, Mr. & Mrs. Guido D. ..o 214 Jersey St.
Keller, MIS. GEOTZE ..ooovviiiiieiiiiiieeiic ettt e 1317 State St.
Kespohl, Mr. & Mrs. JUlIUS  ....oooiiiiiiiiiicceccee s 1855 Jersey St.
Kespohl, Misses Ada, Magarata ..........c.cooeeveerienieriiinnieeneesee e 1855 Jersey St.
Kespohl, Misses Bertha, Louise, Clara ........c.ccoceevervenenicnineeieceecnieiceeeen 331 Vine
Klarner, Mr. & Mrs. Gustav, four children..............cooooovviiiiiiiiiiiieeeiee, E. State St.
Klarner, Misses Julia, Mary, Christel, ANNa ..........cccocooiiiiieieieieecceren 435 So. 5"
Knittel, Mr. & Mrs. EMIl ... 318 Elm St.
Knittel, Misses Irma, OCLaAVIA .........ccoovveiiiieii i 318 Elm St.

Lancaster, Mr. & Mrs. Emery W. ......ccoiiiiiiiiiiiniciicieceeceeeeee 1805 Grove Ave.



Lancaster, VIFZINIA .....ccceevirienieeiinienieneeieei et 1805 Grove Ave.

Lockwood, Mrs. Kate .......ccoooviioiiiiiiiece et 222 So. 16™ St.
Lane, Mr. & Mrs. Charles E. .....cccoooiiiiiiiiecee e 1254 Vermont
McCarl, Judge & Mrs. Lyman, four children

Meyer, Mr. & Mrs. John H. .......cccoiiiiiiiiiiccceeeeeeeece e 1253 Park Place
Meyer, Miss EdNa .......c.ooovvivieiieiicicceeeeeeee e 1253 Park Place
MeEYeEr, LESIET ..uvvvieiieeeeeeeeee e 1253 Park Place
MILlEr, MIS. E. ML oottt en s 320 N. 8™
Montgomery, MIS. COTa .....cooviiiiriiiniiienieri e 1240 Vermont
Montgomery, Mr. Burton, Mr. Edmund ..........ccccoocoiiiiiniiniieieee 1240 Vermont
Montgomery, Miss Catherine ..........cccccoeeeeveveeineiiiesierre e 1240 Vermont
Montgomery, Dr. & Mrs. E. B...ccooiiiii e 1461 Vermont
Montgomery, Miss Elizabeth ............ccccooviiviniiiiiiiiceeee 1461 Vermont
Montgomery, Miss EI€anor .........ccccoeieiiiienieneiiciceeeeeecee e 1461 Vermont
Musselman, Mrs. D. L. ..o s 124 So. 24*
Oertle, MI. JOSEPN ..oeeviiiiiieeeeeet e 1014 Hampshire
Potter, Mr. & Mrs. Johnt Fred......c.ooovviiiiiiiiiiiiciecccceeeeeeee e 316 Ky.
POtter, MISS ALICIA  .vvvevviiieieiiieiieeie ettt ettt e e et e et e ereeesvseaeessseeneas 316 Ky.
Pinkham, MIS. E. L......oooiiiiiiieeeeeee et 1400 Maine St.
Richardson, Mr. & Mrs. WIN. A. ..oovoioeiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 228 So. 18*
Robbins, Mrs. JOSEPh .....ccociiieieiiicicee e 129% N. 6™
Rogers, Mrs. ANna N. ..ot 2203 Spring
Rogers, MiSs Ella ...ccoooviiiiiiiiiiicceceee e 2203 Spring
Rogers, MI. Charles ........ccoooeviiiiiiiieii e 2203 Spring
Rouse, Mr. & Mrs. D. H. oo 2449 Broadway
RoOUSE, M. JONI oo e 1122 N. 10®
Schlagenhauf, Mr. & Mrs. Philip J.......ccooooviiiiniiieceee e, 1250 Ky
Seger, Mr. & Mrs. Charles A ......ccooerieiinienieieeee e 2030 Jersey St.
Sprigg, Mrs. AnNa G. ....ocooviiiriiiiiieieeee e 1654 Jersey St.
Smyth, Miss [Sabel ......c.oiiiiiiieeee e 419 Broadway
Vasen, Mrs. El1a M. ..o 329" So. 8" St.
Wells, M. & MIS. GEOIZE ..ocveivieiiiiiiieieieieeste ettt 224 So. 20
WEILS, LAWIEINCE  .ooeveiiiiiiiiceeee et 224 So. 20%
Wells, Mr. & Mrs. J. Russell, three children ................ccccocooiiiiiinn, 1825 Jersey St.
Werner, DI & MIS. AL Wi State & 14™ Sts.
Werner, Miss DOTOthY ......oooviviiiiiiiiiiee e State & 14™ Sts.
Westermann, Mr. & Mrs. J. W. o, 417 York
Westermann, Misses Grace, Leda, Ruth ..o 417 York
Westermann, Mr. Walter, Paul ..., 417 York
Wheeler, Mrs. H. Nt 2919 Broadway
Wheeler, Misses Gladys, BErmnice ..........c.ccoooveveeeeiioecieiieccie e 2919 Broadway
Woods, Dr. & MIS. REUDEN ...ooooooieiiiiiiieece e 1420 Vermont

Young, Mr. & Mrs. Elijah.....ccoocoiiiiiiiieieeeeee 2250 Broadway
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Dienna Drew, Chair Sandra Morrison Jean Schweda
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1914 2014

Otto Mohrenstecher Katherine Daniels, President
William H. Woodruff Michael Humphrey, Vice-president
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